
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

5 p.m. Wednesday, June 26, 2024 (Hybrid Meeting) 

9300 N Loop Blvd, California City, CA 93505 

A QUORUM OF THE BOARD WILL BE PRESENT IN PERSON 

MISSION STATEMENT: “Building health, well-being, and resiliency” 

 JOIN ZOOM MEETING 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81941748307?pwd=oCy3jDLWnNCat3oEeKHXXhC9taS0Re.1 

Meeting ID: 819 4174 8307 

Passcode: 065867 

One tap mobile: 

+16699006833,,81941748307# US (San Jose) +16694449171,,81941748307# US

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/INVOCATION

2. ROLL CALL AND CALL TO ORDER

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board members can amend the agenda before or after someone makes a motion to
adopt the agenda. To do this, any board member can motion to add items, delete items,
or change things around. Once someone motions to amend the agenda, the board takes
a vote, and the majority rules. The meeting will proceed according to the approved
agenda.

Motion:   Second:   Action:

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81941748307?pwd=oCy3jDLWnNCat3oEeKHXXhC9taS0Re.1


 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Members of the public are welcome to address the Board on any matter NOT on the 
agenda and over which the Board has authority. If you wish to speak, please state your 
name for the record and limit your comments to five (5) minutes. 

 
5. COMMUNITY ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
6. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine, non-controversial, and will be 
approved by one (1) motion if no member of the Board, Staff, or Public wishes to 
comment or ask questions. Public comment to be limited to five (5) minutes. Roll Call 
vote is required. 

 
A. FINANCIAL REPORTS of May 31, 2024 

1.  Balance Sheet 
2.  Profit and Loss Statement 
3.  Check Disbursement Record 
4.  Payroll Summary 
 

B. APPROVE WARRANTS 
1. Vendor Payment Approval 
2. Debit Card Transmissions 

 
C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Regular Meeting: June 4, 2024 
 

D. REVIEW AND DISCUSS FISCAL YEAR 2024-25 BUDGET 
 
 

Motion:   Second:   Action:   
 

7. FACILITY REPORTS 
 

A. 8101 BAY AVE 
B. 9278, 9300, and 9350 N Loop 

 
Motion:   Second:   Action:   

 
 

8. CONTINUED BUSINESS 

A. Status of Annexation application submission to LAFCo. 
 

2



 

B. Strategic Plan - Tom Hayes (RRH) and Karen Macedonio (EKHCD) 
 

Motion:   Second:   Action:   
 
 

9. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. RESOLUTION NUMBER 2024-0618-1: Election Resolution Kern County: 
Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of Kern to Permit Election 
Services for a General District Election in November 2024 

 
 

Motion:   Second:   Action:   
 
 

B. RESOLUTION NUMBER 2024-0618-2: Election Resolution San Bernardino 
County: Requesting the Board of Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino to 
Permit Election Services for a General District Election in November 2024 

 
 

Motion:   Second:   Action:   
 

 
C. APPROVE NIGRO & NIGRO AUDIT CONTRACT FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 ENDING 

6/30/24 
 
 

Motion:   Second:   Action:   
 

D. Consideration of Award of Shade Covering Project at 9350 N. Loop to Clearview 
Homes, Inc, in the amount of $69,000.00. 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 

 

CS1: Conference with Real Property Negotiator ((§ 54956.8) 
Property: 9300 N Loop Blvd., California City and 8101 Bay Ave, California City 
Agency Negotiator: Alex Lemieux 
Negotiating Parties: Bartz-Altadonna 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 

CS2: Conference with Real Property Negotiator ((§ 54956.8) 
Property: 9350 N Loop Blvd., Modular Unit, California City 
Agency Negotiator: Alex Lemieux 
Negotiating Parties: Adventist Health 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 

CS3: Conference with Real Property Negotiator ((§ 54956.8) 
Property: N Loop and Bay Ave locations 
Agency Negotiator: Alex Lemieux 

3



 

Negotiating Parties: Potential small space tenants 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment 
 
CS4: Public Employee Appointment ((Gov. Code Section 54957(b)(1).) 
Title: Administrative Assistant 

 
 

11. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

12. PRESIDENTS COMMENTS 
 

Administrative Code: Agenda and Order of Business 
 

13. DIRECTORS COMMENTS 
 

Afghan family refugee relocation into east Kern County, K. Macedonio 
 

14. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

A. Response to Grand Jury Report 
 

B. Logic Model 
 

C. Grant Policies and Procedures 
 

D. Employee Handbook Update 
 

E. Strategic Partnerships and Key Relationships 
 

F. Website Review 
 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Motion:   Second:   Action:   

 
 
Next Regular Meeting: Tuesday, July 2, 2024, at 5 p.m. 
 
In person 9300 N Loop Blvd., California City, CA 93505 (and via Zoom) 

“Pursuant to Government Code section 54952(a), any request for a disability-related 
modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, that is sought in order to 
participate in this agendized public meeting should be directed to the District’s office at (760) 
373-2804 at least 48 hours prior to said meeting”. 

4



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

As of May 31, 2024

 

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

1135 Mission Bank Checking 558,941.86

1140 Mision Bank Cancer Fund 29,154.45

1145 Cancer Fund CD 11,988.52

1150 Local Agency Fund 697,458.21

1151 LAIF FMV -10,405.23

1155 Bank of Sierra 208,531.95

Cash on hand 300.00

Total Bank Accounts $1,495,969.76

Accounts Receivable

1200 Accounts Receivable 8,319.00

1201 Taxes Receivable - Kern County 0.00

1290 1290 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 0.00

Total Accounts Receivable $8,319.00

Other Current Assets

1299 Other Receivable 0.00

1400 Interest Receivable 0.00

1495 Prepaid Unit 2,500.00

1498 Prepaid Expenses 0.00

1499 Undeposited Funds 0.00

Inventory Asset 0.00

Uncategorized Asset 0.00

Total Other Current Assets $2,500.00

Total Current Assets $1,506,788.76

Fixed Assets

1500 Land 178,205.00

1510 Buildings 1,310,740.00

1520 Furniture & Equipment 0.00

1530 Improvements 250,251.00

1531 New Flooring-9300 North Loop 17,500.00

Total 1530 Improvements 267,751.00

1550 Accumulated Depreciation -836,554.00

Total Fixed Assets $920,142.00

Other Assets

1700 Lease Receivable 31,702.00

Total Other Assets $31,702.00

TOTAL ASSETS $2,458,632.76

6-A-1 5



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Balance Sheet

As of May 31, 2024

 

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2000 Accounts Payable 22,355.17

Total Accounts Payable $22,355.17

Other Current Liabilities

2050 Accrued Expenses 0.00

2110 Deferred Compensation 0.00

2125 Other Current Liabilities 55.00

2126 Accrued Payroll 0.00

2130 2130 Note Payable - Dalffe 0.00

2140 Lease Deposit 5,150.00

Total Other Current Liabilities $5,205.00

Total Current Liabilities $27,560.17

Long-Term Liabilities

2160 DIR - Leases 29,143.00

Total Long-Term Liabilities $29,143.00

Total Liabilities $56,703.17

Equity

2900 Retained Earnings 2,759,978.45

3000 Opening Bal Equity 0.00

Net Income -358,048.86

Total Equity $2,401,929.59

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $2,458,632.76

6-A-1 6



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Profit and Loss

May 2024

TOTAL

MAY 2024 JUL 2023 - MAY 2024 (YTD)

Income

4010 Property Tax Revenues 2,447.17 201,124.64

4030 Lease Income 5,805.97 61,313.67

4040 Interest Income 6,233.19

4090 Other Revenue 1,047.99

Total Income $8,253.14 $269,719.49

GROSS PROFIT $8,253.14 $269,719.49

Expenses

6155 Directors Fees 2,300.00 13,935.00

6160 Dues and Subscriptions 291.40 11,564.59

6165 Election Costs - Kern County 85.00

6170 Groundskeeper 1,000.00 7,535.00

6180 Insurance

6185 Liability Insurance 29,587.87

6190 Work Comp 1,022.74

Total 6180 Insurance 30,610.61

6240 Miscellaneous

6241 Donation- Senior Center Association 500.00 2,000.00

Total 6240 Miscellaneous 500.00 2,000.00

6243 Modular Unit Rental 855.33 8,138.45

6270 Professional Fees

6280 Legal Fees 8,166.00 57,620.32

6283 Prof Services Accounting 14,000.00

6285 Audit Expense 12,000.00

6287 Consulting -Miscellaneous Consultants 12,020.00

Total 6270 Professional Fees 8,166.00 95,640.32

6281 Board Meeting Costs-Zoom Mtgs 24.99 579.92

6300 Repairs &  Maintenance 1,578.90 11,384.13

6310 R&M- North Loop Bldg 20,045.14

6311 Large Item Repairs & Maint-N.Loop 1,876.25

Total 6310 R&M- North Loop Bldg 21,921.39

6319 Fire Damage 1,937.50 37,500.16

6320 R & M - Bay Ave Bldg 7,670.00 280,377.21

6330 Alarm Monitoring-Bay Ave Bldg 367.99 932.89

Total 6300 Repairs &  Maintenance 11,554.39 352,115.78

6350 Conference and Travel 40.61

6390 Utilities

6395 Telephone 248.12 2,642.39

6400 Gas and Electric 889.95 13,141.23

6410 Water 371.68 3,647.68

6-A-2 7



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Profit and Loss

May 2024

TOTAL

MAY 2024 JUL 2023 - MAY 2024 (YTD)

6420 Trash 372.05 3,720.50

6440 Internet 429.95 12,492.34

Total 6390 Utilities 2,311.75 35,644.14

6500 Office Expenses 970.00

6550 Office Supplies 29.43 2,394.56

6345 Supplies 446.42

Total 6550 Office Supplies 29.43 2,840.98

Total 6500 Office Expenses 29.43 3,810.98

6560 Payroll Expenses 258.75 26,597.74

6561 Payroll EDD Taxes -256.49

6562 Payroll Federal Taxes 176.70

Total 6560 Payroll Expenses 258.75 26,517.95

6690 Reconciliation Discrepancies -80.00

Total Expenses $27,292.04 $588,138.35

NET OPERATING INCOME $ -19,038.90 $ -318,418.86

Other Expenses

6700 Annexation with Ridgecrest Regional Hospital

6710 Turning West LLC 37,875.00

6720 Public information meetings costs 1,755.00

Total 6700 Annexation with Ridgecrest Regional Hospital 39,630.00

Total Other Expenses $0.00 $39,630.00

NET OTHER INCOME $0.00 $ -39,630.00

NET INCOME $ -19,038.90 $ -358,048.86

6-A-2
8



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Check Detail

May 2024

DATE TRANSACTION 
TYPE

NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

1135 Mission Bank Checking

05/06/2024 Expense Ebay R -27.44

27.44

05/06/2024 Expense Google Account 904, R -86.40

Account 904, 86.40

05/07/2024 Expense Tmobile 2024 May R -45.09

2024 May 45.09

05/08/2024 Expense Network Solutions R -1.99

1.99

05/16/2024 Expense The Grantsmanship Center monthly  membership, Director K Macedonio, R -69.00

monthly  membership, Director K Macedonio, 69.00

05/28/2024 Expense Zoom Video Communications, 
Inc.

ZOOM.US 888-799-9666 DBT CRD 1105 R -24.99

Act 114276325 24.99

05/28/2024 Expense Roberts Rules Teachable.com R -67.00

67.00

05/29/2024 Expense Grant Station R -69.00

69.00

1155 Bank of Sierra

05/07/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40363 Aleshire & Wynder, LLP Replace Check# check #40132 R -
1,200.00

-
1,200.00

05/07/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40364 City of California City water 2024 -  0314 to 0413 Act 101730.03//Act 
103347.01,

R -371.68

-371.68

05/07/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40365 Golden Hills IT 2024 -  June Services (in advance) R -
1,078.90

-
1,078.90

05/07/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40366 Joselito M Lacson, Designer 2024-0504 Inv 2412,  Inv 2413, R -
1,937.50

6-A-3
9



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Check Detail

May 2024

DATE TRANSACTION 
TYPE

NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

-
1,937.50

05/07/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40367 Meister & Meister Refund of deposit in lieu of bond R -
8,050.00

-
8,050.00

05/07/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40368 Mobile Modular 2024 -  0418 to 0517 Inv 2555661 R -855.33

-855.33

05/07/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40369 Waste Management Corporate 
Services, Inc.

2024- 0401to 0430 N Loop, Inv 3928348-4808-
8

R -372.05

-372.05

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40374 Aleshire & Wynder, LLP 2024-0430 Retainer $1236.00 Excess 
$5730.00

-
6,966.00

-
6,966.00

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40375 Clearview Homes 20240424 Inv. 83314-5712 Flat Roof repair 
NLoop

-
7,670.00

-
7,670.00

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40376 Digitech 20240531 Inv 17921, Monthly $42.99 //Inv 
17996,  Bay Ave $325.00

-367.99

-367.99

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40377 Frontier 760-373-2804-102413-5 2024 -  0428 to 0527
9300 N Loop

-203.03

-203.03

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40378 LOST CITY JUNK REMOVAL 2024 -  0415, Inv. 2 Final clear out  of Bay Ave 
Building

-500.00

-500.00

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40379 Luciano Miranda 2024-April 188267, $500.00 // May, 188266, 
$500.00

-
1,000.00

-
1,000.00

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40380 SCE 8000222683, 8001112753, 8001112989, 
8001658860, 8001959862

-849.70

6-A-3 10



EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
Check Detail

May 2024

DATE TRANSACTION 
TYPE

NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION CLR AMOUNT

-849.70

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40381 Senior Citizen Association of 
California City

592318 2024 March $250.00//April $250.00 -500.00

-500.00

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40382 SoCalGas 2024 -  0410 to 0509, 049 013 9910 7 -40.25

-40.25

05/21/2024 Bill Payment 
(Check)

40383 Spectrum Business/Time 
Warner

126318801 $269.97 //127902701, $159.98 -429.95

-429.95

6-A-3 11



District Expense

Directors Fees 2,300.00$   

Staff 0

Payroll Taxes expense 258.75

Total Expense 2,558.75$   

Employee Contribution

Notation - Cal Savers Contribution 55.00$   

East Kern Health Care District

Payroll summary

May 31, 2024

6-A-4 12



Summary of Proceedings - Minutes 
EAST KERN HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JUNE 4, 2024, 5 p.m. 

MISSION STATEMENT: “Building health, well-being, and resiliency.” 

(Note: Motions are identified by maker’s name in bold First : Second) 

Video 
Time 
Code 

Item Action 

0:00 1. Pledge of
Allegiance

At 5:01pm 

1:02 2. Roll Call and Call
to Order

Present were: L. Peralta, K. Macedonio, R. Macedonio, and the 
meeting was called to order by Chair Macedonio at 5:02 p.m. 
Director Patrick arrived at 5:05pm 

3:05 3. Approval of
Agenda

Motion:  Approve agenda 

Patrick : R Macedonio Motion Carried, 4-0 
6:16 4. Public Comment None 
6:52 5. Community

Announcements
Director Patrick made a correction related to the Veterans’ Event. 

8:40 6. Consent Calendar:
6A. Financial Reports

6B. Approve Warrants 

6C. Minutes of 
05/21/24  

6A.No Financial Report was made – reports are made at the first 
District meeting of the month.  

6B. The Board reviewed the warrant list and asked clarifying 
questions.  

6C. It was noted that the minutes included the incorrect posting 
time for the meeting of May 21.  

Motion: Approve Consent Calendar. L Partick: L Peralta. 
Motion Carried, 4-0. 

15:43 
pp.9-10 
of 
agenda 

7. Discussion of
Budget Draft for FY
2024-2025

7. Eva Hebebrand of Moats & Hebebrand reviewed the draft
budget and noted that some of the standard revenues and costs
were based on 2023 actuals and are remaining flat. She stated
the budget reflects the likely operating expenses. It was noted that
insurance invoices may impact the budget.

Ms. Hebebrand stated she needs direction related to what the 
reconstructions will be for the Districts properties and facilities. 

6-C-1 13



 

Board direction would serve to help her tighten the budget for the 
next 12 months. 

Chair Macedonio reported the insurance claim questions facing 
the District are important financial factors and stated the District 
will be working with an RGS advisor who will be assisting with the 
insurance claims. 

Ms. Hebebrand will bring back the Budget at the next Board 
meeting, after information is gained related to the insurance claim 
questions and any construction anticipated over the next 12 
months.    

32:57 8. Facility Reports

8A. 8101 Bay Ave. 
8B. 9278, 9300, and 
9350 N. Loop 

8.A-B

Director R. Macedonio reported a survey of the boundaries 
will help the District know how much of the area is owned by 
the District. It was reported by the Board that there was a bid 
walk and that only one person came. Chair Macedonio 
stressed the importance of trying to seek more than one bid 
in the interest of the public process.  

This item and reports were information-only; no votes were taken. 
35:13 
p. 11 of
agenda

9. Staff Reports
8A. RGS Update 8A. RGS consultant MJ Brown reported on the activities that RGS 

has conducted thus far in the contract. The activities related to 
minutes production, staffing of meetings, a website audit for 
compliance, and preparation for the Grand Jury response.  

Chair Macedonio asked Ms. Hebebrand to capture the various 
activity line items in QuickBooks. There was no vote related to this 
item. 

38:59 10. Continued
Business
10A. Status of
Annexation application
submission to LAFCo

10.B Strategic Plan
Process

10A. It was reported that the annexation application has been 
submitted to LAFCO; there are some questions to LAFCO 
regarding documents submitted versus model documents. The 
CEQA Declaration of Exemption has been signed. 
10B. Chair Macedonio noted that Tom from Ridgecrest Regional 
will be at the Board meeting on June 18 and there will be more 
discussion on the Strategic Plan process. 

There was no action related to this item. 
43:45 
pp.12-
14 of 
packet 

11. New Business

11A. Approve 
Resolution to update 
the Admin Code to 
conduct two (2) 

11A. RGS Consultant Brown reviewed the packet memo 
related to establishing two meetings per month. The Board 
pointed out that approval of this resolution will amend the 
District’s administrative code, and Chair Macedonio stressed 

6-C-1 14



 

Regular Meetings on 
the 1st and 3rd Tuesday 
of each month at 5p.m. 
Surveying, Inc. has 
been contacted to 
request a proposal for 
a boundary survey and 
a topographical survey 
on the N Loop 
properties. Anticipate 
bringing proposal to 
Board for 6/4/2024 
meeting. 

11B. Discussion of 
Surplus Land 
Declaration Process 

the importance of having the administrative code available for 
public viewing on the District’s website.  

Motion: Approve Resolution 
L Patrick : R Macedonia Motion Carried, 4-0. 

11B. General Counsel Alex Lemieux stated the Surplus Land Act is 
very complex and referenced his memorandum that summarizes 
his understanding of the process and recent changes. He laid out 
the general steps of determination and declaration of land as 
surplus. He noted that sometimes a process goes through the 
Surplus Property Act, and sometimes it is exempt. Counsel 
reviewed what some of the District’s obligations would be and what 
reporting would entail, determining on the determination. He noted 
he has questions about the process and needs to know if the Board 
wants him to continue his examination. The Board had a short 
discussion on what the priorities were and highlighted the need for 
the repair at the Bay Avenue building as a priority. 

1:01:50 12. Closed Session The Board moved into Closed Session for discussion of those 
items enumerated on the agenda cover. 

1:48:30 13. Report Out of
Closed Session

General Counsel Alex Lemieux stated, “The Board met in Closed 
Session on the five items that were agendized, each of these 
concerned conferences with real property negotiators pursuant to 
GC Section 54956.8. The agency negotiator is the same for each 
of the five items, Alex Lemieux. Under negotiation is the same for 
each of the five items, that’s price and terms of payment. I will now 
read the five items, property address and negotiating counterparty. 
For CS1, the property is 9278 N. Loop Boulevard in California City 
and the negotiating party is Cajon Medical Group. For CS2, the 
property location is 9300 N. Loop Boulevard in California City; 
negotiating party is West Point Physical Therapy. For CS3, the 
property is 9300 N. Loop Boulevard in California City and 8101 
Bay Avenue in California City. Negotiating party is Bartz-
Altadonna. For property 9350 N. Loop Boulevard Modular Unity in 
California City, the negotiating party is Adventist Health. For CS5, 
the properties are the North Loop and Bay Avenue locations, 
negotiating parties are potential or prospective small space 
tenants. The Board took no reportable action on any of these five 
items, CS1-5. That concludes the attorney’s closed session 
report.” 

6-C-1 15



1:51:05 14. President’s
Comments

Chair Macedonio shared that the election filing period begins on 
July 15 and nomination period ends August 9th. She reported on 
the potential seats that will be available. Director R. Macedonio 
noted that this information should be added to the District’s 
website. 

1:53:20 15. Directors’
Comments

None 

1:53:40 16. Future Agenda
Items

Director Peralta noted that she would like to see an Ad Hoc 
Committee Handbook on a future agenda. Attorney Alex Lemieux 
stated he has sent a table of contents to the Committee and 
suggested that Directors view it in Microsoft’s “redline” version. 

Others future agenda items are the response to the Grand Jury 
Report, the Logic Model, grant policies and procedures, and the 
employee handbook update. General Counsel noted he would not 
be available on July 2 and would have someone else cover that 
meeting. 

2:02:02 Adjournment Motion to Adjourn at 7:03 p.m. 
L Patrick : R Macedonio Motion Carried, 4-0 

6-C-1
16



RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 0626 - 1 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EAST KERN HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

KERN TO PERMIT THE REGISTRAR-RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK TO RENDER 
ELECTION SERVICES FOR A GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION TO BE HELD ON 

NOVEMBER 5, 2024 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EAST KERN 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT (“District”): 

1. A general District election is called for November 5, 2024, for the purpose of 
electing three members to the Board of Directors for the full term of four (4) years.  

2. The Board of Supervisors of the County of Kern is requested, pursuant to section 
10403 of the Elections Code, to consent and agree to conduct the general district election on 
November 5, 2024, at the same time as the general election. 

3. The Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk is authorized to canvass the returns of the 
general district election and the Board of Supervisors is requested to issue instructions to the 
Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk to take steps necessary for the holding of the election.  The 
District shall pay in full its pro rata share of the expenses for the conduct of the election. 

4. Pursuant to Elections Code section 13307, each candidate for elective office to be 
voted for at the general district election may prepare a candidate’s statement on an appropriate 
form provided by the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk.  The statement may include the name, 
age and occupation of the candidate and a brief description of no more than 200 words of the 
candidate’s education and qualifications expressed by the candidate.  The statement shall not 
include party affiliation of the candidate, nor membership or activity in partisan political 
organizations.  The statement shall be filed in the office of the Clerk at the time the candidate’s 
nomination papers are filed.  The statement may be withdrawn, but not changed, during the 
period for filing nomination papers and until 5:00 p.m. of the next working day after the close of 
the nomination period.  No candidate shall include additional materials in the sample ballot 
package.   

5. The Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk shall estimate the total cost of printing, 
handling, translating, and mailing the candidates’ statements filed, pursuant to the Elections 
Code, and require each candidate filing a statement to pay in advance a pro rata share as a 
condition of having the statement included in the voter’s pamphlet.  The Clerk shall bill each 
candidate for costs in excess of the deposit and shall refund within 30 days of the election unused 
portion of the deposit.  The Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk shall provide each candidate or the 
candidate’s representative copy of this Resolution at the time nominating petitions are issued.   

9-A
17



6. The District Manager is directed to file a certified copy of this resolution with the
Board of Supervisors and the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk of the County of Kern. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ______________________, 2024. 

, President 

ATTEST: 

, Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

District Counsel 

(SEAL) 

9-A
18



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 - 0626 - 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EAST KERN HEALTH CARE 
DISTRICT REQUESTING THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 

SAN BERNARDINO TO PERMIT THE REGISTRAR-RECORDER/COUNTY CLERK 
TO RENDER ELECTION SERVICES FOR A GENERAL DISTRICT ELECTION TO 

BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 5, 2024 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EAST KERN 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT (“District”): 

1. A general District election is called for November 5, 2024, for the purpose of
electing three members to the Board of Directors for the full term of four (4) years.  

2. The Board of Supervisors of the County of San Bernardino is requested, pursuant
to section 10403 of the Elections Code, to consent and agree to conduct the general district 
election on November 5, 2024, at the same time as the general election. 

3. The Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk is authorized to canvass the returns of the
general district election and the Board of Supervisors is requested to issue instructions to the 
Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk to take steps necessary for the holding of the election.  The 
District shall pay in full its pro rata share of the expenses for the conduct of the election. 

4. Pursuant to Elections Code section 13307, each candidate for elective office to be
voted for at the general district election may prepare a candidate’s statement on an appropriate 
form provided by the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk.  The statement may include the name, 
age and occupation of the candidate and a brief description of no more than 200 words of the 
candidate’s education and qualifications expressed by the candidate.  The statement shall not 
include party affiliation of the candidate, nor membership or activity in partisan political 
organizations.  The statement shall be filed in the office of the Clerk at the time the candidate’s 
nomination papers are filed.  The statement may be withdrawn, but not changed, during the 
period for filing nomination papers and until 5:00 p.m. of the next working day after the close of 
the nomination period.  No candidate shall include additional materials in the sample ballot 
package.   

5. The Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk shall estimate the total cost of printing,
handling, translating, and mailing the candidates’ statements filed, pursuant to the Elections 
Code, and require each candidate filing a statement to pay in advance a pro rata share as a 
condition of having the statement included in the voter’s pamphlet.  The Clerk shall bill each 
candidate for costs in excess of the deposit and shall refund within 30 days of the election unused 
portion of the deposit.  The Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk shall provide each candidate or the 
candidate’s representative copy of this Resolution at the time nominating petitions are issued.   

9-B 19



6. The District Manager is directed to file a certified copy of this resolution with the
Board of Supervisors and the Registrar-Recorder/County Clerk of the County of San Bernardino. 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ______________________, 2024. 

, President 

ATTEST: 

, Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

District Counsel 

(SEAL) 

9-B
20



May 1, 2024 

Board of Directors 
East Kern Health Care District 
8101 Bay Avenue/PO Box 2546 
California City, CA 93504 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide East Kern Health Care District 
(District) for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Audit	Scope	and	Objectives	

We will audit the business-type activities and each major fund of the District, as of June 30, 2024 and for the 
year then ended and the related notes, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents of the financial statements. 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAS)	and, if applicable, in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards, 
and/or any state or regulatory audit requirements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP,) as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that certain required supplementary information 
(RSI) such as management's discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  

As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
(RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAS). 
These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods of 
measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses 
to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI 
is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis

9-C

21



Page 2 of 8 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government	
Auditing	 Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a 
paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal 
control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. 
The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.  If during our audit we 
become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this 
engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government	Auditing	Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

Auditor	Responsibilities	

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards. As 
part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District's internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit 
of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

4. Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	 Auditing	
Standards. 

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other 
periods. 

Compliance	with	Laws	and	Regulations	

As previously discussed, as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of the District's compliance with the 
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will 
not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion. 

9-C 22



Page 3 of 8 

Management	Responsibilities	

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that they have 
responsibility: 

a) For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

b) For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental 
regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements; and

c) To provide us with:
i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of the basic financial statements such as records, documentation, and
other matters;

ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit;
iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom we determine it necessary to

obtain audit evidence.
iv. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to issue that will

be included in the annual report and the planned timing and method of issuance of that annual 
report; and

v. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, comprise the
annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor's report.

d) For including the auditor's report in any document containing basic financial statements that indicates 
that such basic financial statements have been audited by us;

e) For identifying and ensuring that the District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its
activities;

f) For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole; and

g) For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest work; 
h) For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding

assets;
i) For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the District involving management,

employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material effect 
on the financials; and

j) For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided.

With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility:  

a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria;
b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information;
c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the

supplementary information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary
information; and

d) to present the supplementary information with the audited basic financial statements, or if the
supplementary information will not be presented with the audited basic financial statements, to make
the audited basic financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary
information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary information and our report
thereon.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management, written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the audit. 

9-C 23



Page 4 of 8 

Nonattest	Services	

With respect to any nonattest services we perform, 

At the end of the year, we agree to perform the following: 

a) Propose adjusting or correcting journal entries detected during the audit, if applicable, to be reviewed
and approved by the District's management.

b) Word process the financial statements using information provided by management.

We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the District. However, we will provide advice and 
recommendations to assist management of the District in performing its responsibilities. 

The District's management is responsible for: 

a) making all management decisions and performing all management functions;
b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services;
c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed;
d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and
e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities.

Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows: 

a) We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards
b) The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional

judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could be construed
as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including determining
account coding and approving journal entries. Our firm will advise the District with regard to tax
positions taken in the preparation of the tax return, but the District must make all decisions with
regard to those matters.

Reporting	

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District's basic financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of the District. Circumstances may arise in which our report 
may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of 
these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-
matter paragraph(s) to our auditor's report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If our opinions on 
the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, 
for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may 
decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement. 

In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report 
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with 
laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, 
providing an opinion on internal control and compliance will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no 
such opinion will be expressed.  

Preparation	of	State	Controller	Report	

Our	Responsibilities	

The objective of our engagement is to prepare the annual Financial Transactions Report (FTR) in accordance 
with the California State Controller's Office Instructions based on information provided by you. We will conduct 
our engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services (SSARSs) 
promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA and comply with the AICPA's 

9-C 24



Page 5 of 8 

Code of Professional Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, 
and due care. 

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you will provide to 
us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion. 
Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or a conclusion or provide any assurance on the FTR. 

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any FTR misstatements, including those caused 
by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the District or noncompliance with laws and 
regulations. 

Management	Responsibilities	

The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands 
that our role is to prepare the FTR in accordance with the State Controller's Office Instructions. Management 
has the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement to prepare 
your FTR in accordance with SSARSs: 

a) The selection of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as the
financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial statements

b) The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error

c) The prevention and detection of fraud
d) To ensure that the District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities
e) The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information,

including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial statements
f) To provide us with:

i. Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements,

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation of the
financial statements, and

iii. Unrestricted access to persons of whom we determine necessary to communicate.

As part of our engagement, we will issue a disclaimer that will state that the FTR were not subjected to an audit, 
review, or compilation engagement by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor 
provide any assurance on them. 

Engagement	Fees	

Our fixed fees for the services previously outlined will be as follows: 

Financial Statements and Auditor Reports $10,000 
Preparation of the State Controller’s Report 500 

Total	 $10,500	

If significant changes occur in the District’s audit requirements with the implementation of new Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards, Government Auditing Standards or the Audit and Accounting 
Guide for State and Local Governments issued by the AICPA for attest and/or nonattest services, this may 
render additional services needed which may increase the above noted fixed fee. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. 
In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if the District’s account becomes 60 days or more 
overdue and may not be resumed until the District’s account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services 

9-C 25



Page 6 of 8 

for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of 
termination, even if we have not completed our report. The District will be obligated to compensate us for all 
time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee 
is based on anticipated cooperation from District personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances 
will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with 
management and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Additionally, our fees are dependent on the availability, quality, and completeness of the District's records and, 
where applicable, upon the District's personnel providing the level of assistance identified in the "prepared by 
client" request list distributed at the end of our planning work (e.g., District employees preparing confirmations 
and schedules we request, locating documents selected by us for testing, etc.). 

We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of District 
key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that District personnel will cooperate 
and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving supporting 
documents, and preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, District personnel are unavailable to provide 
the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we have to do to complete 
the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees over our original fee estimate. 

If circumstances occur related to the condition of District records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate 
audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements caused 
by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment 
prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial statements, we retain the right to 
take any course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or 
issue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 

Should our assumptions with respect to these matters be incorrect, or should the condition of the records, 
degree of cooperation, or other matters beyond our reasonable control require additional commitments by us 
beyond those upon which our estimated fees are based, we may adjust our fees and planned completion dates. 
If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with management and arrive at a new fee estimate 
as soon as reasonably practicable. 

Scheduling	

Scheduling of the Audit Final-Fieldwork Dates will be based on an agreeable timetable with the District. We ask 
that the District prepare a completed and finalized Trial Balance and General Ledger in Excel form as of the 
June 30, 2024 date with all Balance Sheet accounts properly reconciled in Excel or PDF form and uploaded into 
the Suralink Portal System by the date scheduled. Failure to complete all the above noted items by the date 
scheduled will result in a $1,000 extra fee charge and postponement of the audit to a later date. A 30-day notice 
before the initial scheduled Audit Final-Fieldwork date is required to change the date and avoid the extra 
$1,000 fee. However, if a December or January date is chosen for the re-scheduled Audit Final-Fieldwork date, 
the $1,000 fee will still apply to cover Overtime costs incurred during those months and will only guarantee 
the audit will be completed by January 31, 2024. 

9-C 26



Page 7 of 8 

Other	Engagement	Matters	

During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, and 
you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted 
communications. 

Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and 
experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial statements 
and related schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service. 

Paul	J	Kaymark,	CPA	is the engagement partner responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the 
report. 

During the course of the audit we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, your 
operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either orally 
or in writing. 

You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become aware 
during the period from the date of the auditor's report to the date the financial statements are issued. 

We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least seven years from the date 
of our report. 

The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Nigro & Nigro, PC and constitutes confidential 
information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to regulatory 
agencies pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such 
audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Nigro & Nigro, PC's personnel. Furthermore, 
upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to regulatory agencies. The regulatory 
agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including 
other governmental agencies. We will notify the District of any such request. 

Conflict	Resolution	

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside governmental agencies and/or threatened 
litigation, etc.), by third parties arise against the District or the board of directors subsequent to this 
engagement, which results in the subpoena of documents from Nigro & Nigro, PC and/or requires additional 
assistance from us to provide information, depositions or testimony, the District hereby agrees to compensate 
Nigro & Nigro, PC (at our standard hourly rates) for additional time charges and other costs (copies, travel, 
etc.), and to indemnify us for any attorney’s fees to represent Nigro & Nigro, PC. 

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle the dispute by 
mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its applicable rules for resolving 
professional accounting and related services disputes before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation 
proceeding shall be shared equally by all parties. 

The District and Nigro & Nigro, PC both agree that any dispute over fees charged by the auditor to the District 
will be submitted for resolution by arbitration in accordance with the applicable rules for resolving 
professional accounting and related services disputes of the American Arbitration Association, except that 
under all circumstances the arbitrator must follow the laws of California.  Such arbitration shall be binding and 
final. IN	AGREEING	TO	ARBITRATION,	WE	BOTH	ACKNOWLEDGE	THAT	IN	THE	EVENT	OF	A	DISPUTE	
OVER	 FEES	CHARGED	BY	THE	ACCOUNTANT,	 EACH	OF	US	 IS	GIVING	UP	THE	RIGHT	TO	HAVE	THE	
DISPUTE	DECIDED	IN	A	COURT	OF	LAW	BEFORE	A	JUDGE	OR	JURY	AND	INSTEAD	WE	ARE	ACCEPTING	
THE	 USE	 OF	 ARBITRATION	 FOR	 RESOLUTION. The prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with the arbitration of the dispute in an amount to 
be determined by the arbitrator. 

9-C
27



Page 8 of 8 

Conclusion	

At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the Board of Directors the following 
significant findings from the audit: 

a) Our view about the qualitative aspects of the District's significant accounting practices;
b) Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit;
c) Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any;
d) Disagreements with management, if any;
e) Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant 

and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting
process;

f) Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our 
audit procedures;

g) Representations we requested from management;
h) Management's consultations with other accountants, if any; and
i) Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence,

with management.

Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, 
the arrangements for our audit of the basic financial statements including our respective responsibilities. 

Enclosed, as required by Government	Auditing	Standards,	is a copy of the report on the most recent peer review 
of our firm. 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide these services and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. 

Very truly yours, 

Nigro & Nigro, PC 

The services and arrangements described in this letter are in accordance with our understanding and are 
acceptable to us. 

Management signature: 

Title:  

Date:  

Governance signature: 

Title:  

Date:  

9-C
28



June 18, 2024 

Staff Report, Future Agenda Items – Karen Macedonio 

Logic Model:  What is it?  Why is it important? 

A Logic Model helps in planning, implementing, evaluating, and communicating the purpose 
and processes of a program by providing a clear and structured overview.  Learning to use Logic 
Models as part of our regular decision process will provide us with a tool to show the return on 
the investment of taxpayer dollars as we make decisions.  It will also give us a greater ability to 
share our vision with potential grant funders. 

A Logic Model is a visual representation that illustrates how a program is intended to work.  It 
outlines the logical relationships between the resources, activities, outputs, outcomes, and 
community impacts.  It is a valuable tool to help everyone understand how and why a program 
will achieve its goals. 

We will be using forms developed by The Grantsmanship Center as we seek greater  
understanding of how to make our vision for the future visible and measurable to everyone 
concerned. 

Sections of a Logic Model defined: 

1. Inputs (Resources).  These are the resources that will go into a program such staff, time,
materials and equipment.

2. Activities.  These are the activities and/or interventions that a program undertakes by
making use of the resources that are available.  The activates can be training sessions,
workshops, services, and product development to name a few.

3. Outputs. Outputs are the direct results of a programs activities.  They can be tracked,
measured, and quantified.  Examples of outputs would be people trained, workshops
held, or products developed.

4. Outcomes. Outcomes are the short-term, intermediate-term, and long-term changes or
benefits that result from the outputs of a program.  Examples of outcomes can be
changes in the level of knowledge, changes in behavior, changes in skillsets, changes in
attitude and changes in conditions.  Outcomes focus on the change that is being
created.

5. Community impact.  Community impact refers to the boarder, long-term changes that a
program will make in a community, or in a system.  It is often beyond the immediate
scope and timeframe of a program.   An example would be education and training.  Skills
are taught, and then expertise is developed and enhances a community over time.

14-B 29



INPUTS ACTIVITIES OUTPUTS OUTCOMES 

Basic Logic Model 

30



East Kern Health Care District  
Assessment of Website Compliance 
June 2024 

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENT RECOMMENDATION 
Website Requirement 
(SB 929) 

All Special Districts are required to 
have a website 

Standards of WCAG 2.0 
level AA (AB 434) 

Adoption of accessibility standards 
based on the Web Content 
Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) 

No critical issues found. 

Enterprise Systems 
Catalogue (SB 272) 

Maintain a catalog of enterprise 
systems and post the catalogue in a 
prominent location on the agency’s 
website 

While the webpage includes a link titled 
“SB 272 Enterprise System Catalog,” the 
link requires an account, and the catalogue 

is not accessible. Streamline Enterprise 
System Catalog

Agenda on Homepage 
(AB 2257) 

Most recent agenda available via 
direct link on the home page 

All linked documents, including the Board 
Packet, should utilize Optical Character 
Recognition (OCR) so that they are 
keyword searchable.  

Public Records 
Requests  
(AB 2853) 

Directing a member of the public to 
the location on the website where 
the public records are posted or can 
be requested 

Consider updating materials to reflect the 
recently revised California Government 
Code Section 7920.530.  

Ethics Training 
(Govt Code 53234-
53235.2) 

Certification that all board members 
have completed ethics training as 
required by AB 1234 is posted  

Not all members are posted. For example, 
Director Patrick.  

Health and Safety Code 
(Govt Code 32139) 

Establish and maintain an Internet 
Web site that lists contact 
information for the district, the 
adopted budget, a list of current 
board members, information 
regarding public meetings, 
recipients of any grant funding, and 
any grant policies 

Consider including any recipients of grant 
funding and/or any grant policies. Agency 
budget information is outdated (2021-
2022).   

Pending California Legislation (2023-2024 Legislative Session)

Internet Websites and 
Email Adress (AB 1637) - 

Pending 

This bill, no later than January 1, 
2025, would require a local agency, 
as defined, that maintains an 
internet website to ensure that the 
internet website utilizes a “.gov” top-
level domain or a “.ca.gov” second-
level domain, and would require a 
local agency that is noncompliant 
with that requirement to redirect that 
internet website to a domain name 
that does utilize a “.gov” or “.ca.gov” 
domain 

It's probable that this bill will pass. 
Presently, the website is using a “.org” 
domain and a “gmail” domain for emails.  

California Reports (Controller) 

Compensation Report 
(Government Code Section 
53891) 

Annual compensation of elected 
officials, officers, and employees 

Linked to the State Controller. The
information appears to be incomplete. 

Financial Transaction 
Report (Government Code 
Section 53893) 

A report of all the financial 
transactions of the local agency 
during the preceding fiscal year 

While there is a link to the State 
Controllers, it directs to the Compensation 
Report and not Financial Transactions. 

14-F 31

https://www.systemcatalog.net/
https://www.systemcatalog.net/


East Kern Health Care District  
Assessment of Website Compliance 
June 2024 

The information seems to be incomplete 
when a separate search is done on the 
Controllers webpage.  

TRANSPARENCY REQUIREMENT RECOMMENDATION 
District Services and 
Programs 
(Health and Safety Code 
32121) 

Detailed description of the health 
care services and programs 
provided by the district and how to 
access the services 

Consider including more detailed 
information regarding the healthcare 
facilities and services.  

Accessibility Page A simple page listing your 
accessibility officer and your policy, 
and how to contact the district 

Provide information on the website about 
accessibility features, including how users 
can request accessible formats or report 
accessibility issues. 

Update Closed 
Captions 

Closed captions on all videos 
posted to the webpage 

No videos posted other than meetings. 
Closed Captions increase accessibility. 

Accessibility Policy Outlines a strategic and systematic 
approach to ensuring that the 
website is inclusive and accessible 
to individuals with disabilities. 
Features include alternative text for 
images, keyboard navigation, and 
compatibility with screen readers, 
ensuring accessibility for all users. 

Draft and approve an accessibility policy 
for the agency's website that outlines 
strategies for ensuring compliance with 
accessibility standards such as WCAG, 
including measures for website design, 
content, and functionality. Additionally, it 
should detail procedures for ongoing 
monitoring, testing, and addressing 
accessibility issues to ensure inclusivity for 
all users. 

Multilingual 
Accessibility 

Providing content in multiple 
languages, allowing users to 
choose their preferred language for 
navigation and comprehension 

Implement language accessibility features 
to ensure inclusivity and ease of access for 
diverse language speakers, enhancing 
user experience and broadening website 
reach across linguistic communities. 

Privacy Policy Public agency websites must have 
clear privacy policies outlining how 
user data is collected, stored, and 
shared 

Conflict of Interest While not directly related to website 
requirements, it emphasizes 
transparency and accountability in 
government activities, which can 
extend to online disclosures and 
reporting 

Consider posting the agency’s Conflict of 
Interest Code and making the filings public 
facing.  

FAQs and Help Center Frequently Asked Questions, refer 
to common queries and their 
corresponding answers that are 
anticipated or regularly encountered 
by users 

Develop a comprehensive Frequently 
Asked Questions (FAQs) section to 
address common queries from the public. 

14-F
32


	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 
	Text4: 


